
467 Stony Hill Road, The Old Harbor Guild

Owner: Dianne Campbell

General Contractor: Handren Brothers, Builders, Harwich

 In or about 1916, the Robbins family of North Chatham deeded a small parcel of land from their abutting property for the construction of the Old Harbor Guild Hall, with the cost of its construction coming from donations.  During its existence, the Hall was used for functions by many local organizations, such as the Masons and the North Chatham Women’s Club, for meetings, dances, suppers, political events, and card games..  The Guild remained a public building until the late 1930’s when it was sold and became a private residence.

467 Stony Hill Road was in very poor condition, with deteriorating joists, rotted sills, unsalvageable windows, a cracked chimney, a leaky roof and bug-infested siding among other defects.  All of these issues have been resolved.  All electrical wiring has been buried and the present building has the same footprint as the original Guild Hall.  

The only change was the addition of dormers to increase second floor living space.     

443 Main Street, The Isaiah Lewis House

Owner: 443 Main Street LLC, David Oppenheim

Architect: Stephen Hart Building Design, West Chatham

General Contractor:  Handren Brothers, Builders, Harwich

Site Work: J.W. Dubis & Sons, Chatham

Plumbing/HVAC: W. Vernon Whiteley, Inc., West Chatham

443 Main Street was built by Captain Isaiah Lewis, a Captain with the New York Ship Line, in 1818.  The house was originally a full cape, but a second floor was added in 1887, by raising the house and building a first floor under it.  In 1887, the house was called “The Prospect House”, and it served as a boarding house.  Over time, the house fell into disrepair until Prominent Chatham lawyer, Heman Harding, bought the house in 1913 and made extensive renovations, including installing the first electric lights in a Chatham residence.  The Hardings lived in the house until 1959. More recently, the house has served as The Chatham Arms  [1961-1981] and Christian’s [1981-2007], both popular Chatham restaurants.  David Oppenheim purchased the building in 1997 and made extensive renovations.  The front of the building is now retail space and the second floor and attic have become two residence apartments.  There is also a new Carriage House style garage in the rear of the property.   

90 Silver Leaf Avenue

Owners:  David and Marjorie French

Architect: John W. French and Linda Neshamkin, Neshamkin French 
                             

                Architects,Charlestown,Ma. 

Contractor: Bob McPhee,McPhee Associates,Inc.,East Dennis, Ma.

Landscaping:  McNamara Brothers, Inc., North Harwich, Ma.

Foundation:  George Ellis, B. & B. Constructing Corporation, Harwich, Ma.

The renovation of 90 Silver Leaf Avenue involved work on three separate buildings,

the house, the cottage and the garage.  All three had had substantial deterioration in a number of structural components.  Every effort was made to save the original millwork, floors and beams.   The contractor reused as much original material as possible in the renovation.  A full cellar was built under the house, and the entire property was relandscaped.  The end result is a beautiful home in keeping with Silver Leaf Avenue and the Old Village.

1731 Main Street, The John Hawes Homestead

Owners:  Marcia and Bob Benson

Contractors: Bob and Marcia Benson, Craig Smith, Cataumet; Chris Yerkes, South                   
          Dennis 

It is believed that John Hawes built this house in 1736 upon the occasion of his marriage to Abigail Doane, possibly making it the oldest existing house in Chatham. ..  Many original features were preserved including parts of the foundation, the original root cellar, the hand-hewn rafters and some of the corner boards and rake boards.  Any interior wood that was replaced was made of white cedar that was hand planed by Mr. Benson.  Because most of the windows had to be replaced, the Bensons installed architecturally correct wood 12 over 8 windows in the front and 9 over 6 on the sides of the house.  A mural created in 1983 by artist Virginia Pena found in one of the front rooms has been restored.  All exterior painting replicated the original colors.  The resulting house is an example of an authentic antique house lovingly restored with history in mind.    

38 Mill Pond Road

Owner: John and Deborah Lashar

Design:  Mark Williams, M.W. Design, Chatham

Contractor:  Minglewood Homes, Inc. Chatham

The house at 38 Mill Pond Road is a balloon framed structure in the “Craftsman-Style.

It dates to about 1915 and is one of three homes in that style at the top of Mill Pond Road.  The renovation consisted of lifting the home and replacing the foundation with a full basement. There was great effort taken to preserve the original materials in the renovation of the interior.  In the process, it was discovered that there had been a fire which charred the roof system, and the damage was repaired..  The siding has been replaced with new cedar shingles and has been basket weaved.  New tapered columns have been installed to match its sister homes.  The renovation resulted in a handsome home which preserved the original character of the house.

329 Stage Harbor Road, The Zenas and Mary Nickerson House

Owners: James and Susan Upson

Architect:  Karen Kempton, West Barnstable 

Contractor:  Rick Roy Construction LLC., Harwich

The is some confusion about the original owners of this house.  It is attributed to Zenas and Mary Nickerson, but a previous owner of the house believed it may have belonged to John W. Atwood.  The date of the house is also unclear. The documentation lists about 1849/1860, but the prior owner feels it dates to 1840.  No matter the owner or the date, this is a handsome 19th century Cape Cod house. The purpose of the renovation was to create a first floor master bedroom and bath as well as an office.  The addition required a new foundation. The floors are reclaimed antique heart pine.  The obvious care and skill with which the renovation was accomplished results in a beautiful home which is traditional and functional. 

465 Stage Harbor Road,  The Benjamin Godfrey House

Owner: Lisa Patten

Design:  Mark Williams, M.W. Designs, Chatham

Contractor: Minglewood Homes, Inc. Chatham

The Benjamin Godfrey house was first deeded to Benjamin Godfrey in 1789, but there are no documents showing when the house was built.  Mr. Godfrey operated the town grist mill which was located to the rise north of the property. There have been relatively few owners since Mr. Godfrey died in 1818.  Timothy R. Smith bought the property in 2010 with the goal of maintaining the integrity of the structure while adding new life to the home.   The intent was also to preserve the many plant species on the property which included the only known Sequoia Redwood tree on Cape Cod.   The house was carefully raised from its original stone foundation and a new foundation has been installed.   One unique feature of the house is that the floor joists are pine trees, with bark intact.  The floor joists have been retained and have been reinforced with modern lumber.  All interior finishes were retained and restored as well as the original wide plank flooring.  In addition, the old wainscoting and beautiful coffered ceilings have been maintained.  The new portion of the house was built to mimic the antique portion.  The resulting structure is a faithful renovation of an antique home with modern comforts.

64 Highland Avenue

Owners: John and Mary Jane Crea

Design: Thomas A. Moore Design Company, Brewster

Contractor: Gary Langille Builders, Inc., West Harwich

While 64 Highland Street does not have a clear record of the date of construction, it was conferred to Augustus and Clara Bearse in June of 1914.  The present owners bought the house in 2007 with the intent of repairing and renovating the home to current living standards while maintaining the house’s original character.  The renovation included a new roof, new cedar shingles, new gutters and new windows.  The front porch was returned to an open farm porch.  Interior changes included new plumbing and a new electrical service.  Walls, ceilings and hardwood floors were renovated.

In addition, there was need for considerable landscaping work.  The owner has a wonderful photo of the original house at the time of the dedication of the Church of the Holy Redeemer in August of 1916.

434 Old Comers Road, The Stephen Smith House      

Owners: David Foster and Kristine Etter

Architect: Theodore P. Streibert,  Streibert Associates Architects, Chatham

Contractor:  The Jodice Corporation, North Chatham

434 Old Comers Road was built in 1820 by Stephen Smith, the great grandfather of Alice Smith.  Her sister, Evelyn Foster, was the great grandmother of the present owner,

David Smith.  The renovation improved some of the house’s deficiencies while keeping the character and feel of the old house.  The first step was a new foundation in place of the old granite boulder foundation.  Next, the plumbing and heating were replaced, as well as the electrical service and communication service.  An addition to the rear was added to provide a coat room, a new powder room and a laundry.  The living room was enlarged while retaining the antique farmhouse-style fireplace.  Windows were replaced and the new windows matched the existing 6 over 6 configuration.  434 Old Comers Road has retained its antique character while becoming a house suited to modern living. 

62 Cedar Street

Owners:  Doug and Kinzie Gensler

Prior Owners:  Robert and Kristin Tishman

Contractors: Rick Roy Construction LLC, Harwich

62 Cedar Street was built in 1880 at 44 Cedar Street.  The house was moved to preserve the structure while allowing the prior owner space to construct a new home.  To enable moving the house one fireplace and a brick patio were removed.  The house was then lifted and moved on a track system made of steel beams similar to railroad tracks to 62 Cedar Street.  A new foundation was poured with great difficulty due to the irregular shape caused by the age of the building.    

The fireplace was reinstalled and all mechanical systems were replaced.  New decks were built and the original porch columns were used to support the porch.   The landscaping, including walks and driveway, were carefully constructed to create a majestic setting for the beautiful antique house.  The result is outstanding.        


